

Mr. Alison.

AUCKLAND HARBOUR BOARD AND BIRKENHEAD BOROUGH EMPOWERING.

[LOCAL BILL.]

ANALYSIS.

- |   |  |
|---|--|
| <p>Title.<br/>Preamble.<br/>1. Short Title.<br/>2. Interpretation.<br/>3. Board may convey to borough.<br/>4. Purposes for which borough to hold land.<br/>5. Domain to be a public work.</p> | <p>6. Borough and adjoining borough may effect joint ownership.<br/>7. Borough may enter into contracts as regards water-frontage, &amp;c.<br/>8. Persons deprived of water-frontage may claim compensation.</p> |
|---|--|

A BILL INTITULED

AN ACT to empower the Auckland Harbour Board to convey Little Shoal Bay of the Harbour of Auckland to the Birkenhead Borough for a Public Domain and Park and Recreation-ground. Title.

5 WHEREAS the Auckland Harbour Board is the owner in fee-simple of all that piece of land described in the Schedule hereto: And whereas the said Board at a duly convened meeting thereof by resolution resolved to consent to the vesting of the said land in the body corporate known as the Mayor, Councillors, and Burgesses of the Borough of Birkenhead for the purposes of a public domain, park, and recreation-ground: And whereas a number of the owners of riparian rights and rights of access to the said land known as Little Shoal Bay have agreed to surrender and extinguish all their interest and claims to riparian rights and rights of access to affecting or relating to the said land: Preamble.

BE IT THEREFORE ENACTED by the General Assembly of New Zealand in Parliament assembled, and by the authority of the same, as follows:—

1. This Act may be cited as the Auckland Harbour Board and Birkenhead Borough Empowering Act, 1907. Short Title.

2. In this Act, if not inconsistent with the context, ~~where the following terms are used, they shall have the meanings hereinafter stated, that is to say:—~~ Interpretation

- 25 “ The Board ” means the Auckland Harbour Board :  
“ The Birkenhead Borough ” means the body corporate of the Mayor, Councillors, and Burgesses of the Borough of Birkenhead.

Board may convey  
to borough.

3. The Board may and it is hereby authorised and empowered to convey to the Birkenhead Borough ~~all that piece of~~ the land described in the Schedule hereto; provided that no riparian rights or rights of access by water shall vest in the said borough in respect thereof, and that such conveyance shall be subject to any riparian rights or rights of water-frontage appurtenant to any land adjoining or abutting on the land described in the Schedule hereto. 5

Purposes for which  
borough to hold  
land.

4. The Birkenhead Borough shall hold such land for the purposes of a public park, domain, and recreation-ground within the meaning of the Public Domains Act, 1881, ~~and the amendments thereof,~~ and subject to the laws for the time being in force relating to the management of public domains: 10

Provided that out of the said land the Birkenhead Borough may use so much as *is* required for the purpose of public roads to give access to the said park, and also so much as may be required for the purposes mentioned in section *seven* of this Act. 15

Domain to be a  
public work.

5. The acquiring of the said land and any rights appertaining thereto, or any part thereof, and the construction and formation of such park, domain, and recreation-ground, and the adjusting the boundaries thereof (if necessary) with adjoining owners or others having or claiming to have rights thereto, shall be public works with the meaning of the Public Works Act, 1905, ~~and any amendment thereof.~~ 20

Borough and  
adjoining borough  
may effect joint  
ownership.

6. If within five years after the passing of this Act the inhabitants of Northcote ~~should~~ form a borough, and the Council of such borough ~~should~~ within such time desires to share in the control of such park or recreation-ground, the Birkenhead Borough shall, on payment to it within such period of five years of one-half the total cost and expenditure paid or incurred by the Birkenhead Borough in respect of this Act and of the said land, admit such new borough to joint ownership and control of the said land; and it shall be lawful for such boroughs from time to time to respectively execute such deeds and documents as may be considered expedient for vesting the said land in such boroughs jointly and for regulating the proper control thereof. 25 30 35

Borough may enter  
into contracts as  
regards water-  
frontage, &c.

7. It shall be lawful for the borough or boroughs for the time being having control of the said land to enter into contracts for the surrender of any rights of water-frontage which are appurtenant to lands adjoining the said land described in the Schedule hereto, and for ~~such~~ that purpose such borough or boroughs may ~~by any such~~ contract— 40

- (a.) Agree with any owner for the payment of and pay such sum of money as may be agreed on with such owner:
- (b.) Agree with any such owner as to the position of any boundary-line: 45
- (c.) Transfer to any such owner, as the consideration for such surrender and for the purpose of straightening or adjusting boundaries, part of the said land described in the Schedule hereto:
- (d.) Exchange with any such owner land on either side of any boundary-line. 50

Persons deprived of  
water-frontage may  
claim compensation

5 8. In case the works aforesaid shall deprive the owner of any adjoining land of any water-frontage, the owner of such adjoining land shall be entitled within the time and in manner provided by the Public Works Act, 1905, to claim and obtain compensation for any injury he may sustain by the deprivation of such water-frontage, in like manner as a person suffering damage from the exercise of any of the powers conferred by the said last-mentioned Act.

---

SCHEDULE.

Schedule.

ALL that part of the Waitemata Harbour known as Little Shoal Bay, containing by admeasurement 22 acres, more or less: bounded *by a line* commencing at the point where the north side of Northcote Terrace joins the Waitemata Harbour; towards the south generally by high-water mark of the sea forming the boundary of Subdivisions S and R of Allotment 13 of a subdivision of Allotments 58, 59, and 60 of the Parish of Takapuna, and part of Subdivision Q of aforesaid Allotment 13, to the boundary of Allotment 9 of said subdivision of Allotments 58, 59, and 60 of the Parish of Takapuna; thence towards the west generally by high-water mark of the sea forming the eastern boundary of Allotments 9, 8, and two parts of Allotment 7 of the said subdivision of Allotments 58, 59, and 60 of the Parish of Takapuna, to the abutment of a public road; thence by the abutment of the said public road and high-water mark of the sea forming the boundary of the other part of Allotment 7 and of Allotment 6 to the boundary of Allotment 56 of the Parish of Takapuna; thence towards the north generally by high-water mark of the sea forming the boundary of Allotment 56 and part of Allotment 55 of the Parish of Takapuna to the abutment of a public road; thence by the abutment of the said public road and the high-water mark of the sea forming the southern boundary of part of Allotment 55 and Lot 7 of Allotment 55 to the abutment of a public road; thence by the abutment of the said road and high-water mark of the sea forming the southern boundary of Lot 6 of Allotment 55, and two parts of Allotment 54, of the Parish of Takapuna, to the west boundary of Lot 24 of a subdivision of Allotment 51 of the Parish of Takapuna, and Lots 24 and 23 of Allotment 51 aforesaid; to the east by high-water mark of the sea forming the western boundary of Lot 22 of aforesaid Allotment 51, and by parts of Allotments Nos. 51 and 52, of the Parish of Takapuna; thence towards the south by part of Allotment 52 of the Parish of Takapuna; thence again towards the east generally by high-water mark of the sea forming the western boundary of the other part of Allotment 52 of the Parish of Takapuna to the intersection of the southern boundary of a proposed road; thence towards the south by a right line forming the southern boundary of said proposed road bearing 77° 49' a distance of 1030 links, as more particularly delineated on plan deposited at the Survey Office at Auckland, to the abutment of Northcote Terrace on to the Waitemata Harbour; thence by said abutment of Northcote Terrace to the point of commencement.